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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT  
FOR THE DISTRICT OF OREGON 

PORTLAND DIVISION 
 
 
 
FRANKLIN D. MILLNER, 
 

Plaintiff, 
 

vs. 
 
MULTNOMAH COUNTY; OLE ERSSON, 
M.D.; CLAUDIA CARLSEN, N.P.; 
RAYMOND SINDELL and RANDEL 
McPHERSON, 
     Defendants. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
NO.   
 
 
COMPLAINT 
Civil Rights Action (42 U.S.C. § 1983); 
Americans with Disabilities Act (42 
U.S.C. 12101 et seq.); Rehabilitation 
Act (29 U.S.C. § 794); Negligence 
 
DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

 
This is a Civil Rights and Americans with Disabilities action with a pendent state claim 

for negligence concerning the defendants’ deliberate indifference to and refusal to accommodate 

a physically disabled man.  Plaintiff, who was being lodged at the Multnomah County Jail, is a 

diabetic with a charcot foot that requires orthotics (specially made shoes).   Even though Plaintiff 

brought his orthotics with him to the jail and informed the jail staff of the need for the orthotics, 

and even though the jail staff understood his disease and the risk of bone infection if he was 

denied the orthotics, the jail staff nevertheless denied him the use of his orthotics.  As a result, 
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Plaintiff’s foot developed an ulcer which became infected, thus rendering him to a wheelchair for 

several months.  After his release, he was diagnosed with a bone infection in his foot.  He was 

hospitalized for two weeks and underwent several surgeries.  He then spent two weeks at a 

skilled nursing facility where he received intravenous antibiotics, and then had to undergo 

numerous sessions in a hyperbaric chamber in order to save his foot from amputation.  He 

incurred over $203,000 in medical bills because the jail would not give him his special shoes.  

 JURISDICTION 

1.   This court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this Complaint under 42 

U.S.C. §§ 1983 and 12101 et seq., 29 U.S.C. § 794, and 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1343(a)(3), and 

1343(a)(4).  Pendent jurisdiction is asserted for separate state law claims under 28 U.S.C. § 

1367.   

 VENUE 

2.   Venue is proper within the District of Oregon because all of the events giving 

rise to this claim occurred in this judicial district, and all defendants reside in this judicial 

district.  28 U.S.C. § 1391(b).  Specifically, all of the acts and practices alleged herein occurred 

in the Multnomah County Jail in Portland, Oregon.   

 PARTIES 

3.   Plaintiff Frank Millner is an adult currently residing in Portland, Multnomah 

County, Oregon. 

4.   Defendant Multnomah County is a county in the State of Oregon.  At all times 

relevant, Multnomah County was obligated to provide services which promote and protect the 

health of the adults and juveniles entrusted to its care.  This includes providing medically 

acceptable treatment and accommodations for inmates’ with diseases and conditions.  At all 
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times relevant, defendant Multnomah County was a public entity within the meaning of Title II 

of the Americans with Disabilities Act and, upon information and belief, received federal 

financial assistance within the meaning of the Rehabilitation Act.   

5. Defendant Ole Ersson, M.D. is a physician at the Multnomah County Inverness 

Jail, and is an employee or agent of Multnomah County.   

6. Defendant Claudia Carlsen, N.P. is a nurse practitioner at the Multnomah County 

Inverness Jail, and is an employee or agent of Multnomah County.   

7. Defendant Raymond Sindell is the Community Health Nurse (CHN).  His 

responsibility is to coordinate the multidisciplinary management of the clients at the Multnomah 

County Inverness Jail.  He is an employee or agent of Multnomah County.   

8. Defendant Randel McPherson is the Nursing Supervisor at the Multnomah 

County Inverness Jail.  He is responsible for the day to day operation and patient care 

coordination on a full-time ongoing basis.  He is an employee or agent of Multnomah County.   

9.   At all times relevant, all defendants acted under color of state law.   

 FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

10.  Franklin Millner has Type I diabetes and an associated condition called charcot 

foot.  A charcot foot is a condition causing weakening of the bones in the foot that can occur in 

people who have significant nerve damage (neuropathy). The bones are weakened enough to 

fracture, and with continued walking the foot eventually changes shape. As the disorder 

progresses, the joints collapse and the foot takes on an abnormal shape, such as a rocker-bottom 

appearance.  Charcot foot is a very serious condition that can lead to severe deformity, disability, 

and even amputation. Because of its seriousness, it is important that patients with diabetes—a 
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disease often associated with neuropathy—take preventive measures and seek immediate care if 

signs or symptoms appear. 

11.  Mr. Millner began having problems with his charcot foot back in 2008.  He had a 

series of ulcers on his foot, which required casting and modifying his orthotics to fit his foot 

better to relieve the pressure.  He was being treated by Dr. Woll, an orthopedist.  In December of 

2011, Mr. Millner’s foot was healed and he had new orthotics to accommodate his charcot foot.   

12.   Mr. Millner was arrested and taken to the Multnomah County Detention Center 

on December 22, 2011.  He was wearing his orthotic shoes at the time of his arrest, and the shoes 

were taken from him at the downtown detention center.   

13.  When an inmate first enters the jail, intake nurses conduct interviews to identify 

current health problems that may need either new or continued treatment.   Mr. Millner 

explained to the intake nurse, Nurse Katrina, that he needed his shoes for his charcot foot.  

Multnomah County Policy requires that a nurse make an initial assessment as to the critical need 

for a prostheses or aid.  Yet, contrary to policy, it appears that Nurse Katrina made no 

assessment whatsoever, and ordered ordinary medical shoes for Mr. Millner to wear that were 

completely inadequate for protecting his foot.   

14. Shortly after arriving at the Detention Center, he was taken to Inverness Jail.  

Again, the records indicate that Mr. Millner informed the jail staff of his charcot foot, his history 

of ulcerations, and his need for his special orthotic shoes.  He saw Claudia Carlsen, N.P. on 

January 3, 2012.  She noted Mr. Millner’s history of right foot ulcers, that he is at “very high risk 

of new ulcerations without his custom diabetic shoes,” and she specifically ordered “special 

handling to wear his custom diabetic shoes and inserts from personal property.”  She also filled 
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out the Special Handling Form for the custom diabetic shoes and inserts.  Still, Mr. Millner did 

not get his shoes.      

15. Multnomah County Corrections has a policy entitled “Prosthetics & Other Aides 

to Impairment.”  Under this policy, the nurse or provider makes an initial assessment as to the 

critical need for a prosthesis or aid.  And if the prosthesis requires a coordinated plan, the Lead 

Nurse or Manager will coordinate implementation.  In addition, safety and security clearance 

may be needed from the Officer in Charge or Lieutenant, and a housing plan made after they 

have examined the aid to impairment.   

16. It appears that N.P. Carlsen partly followed the procedure by assessing the critical 

need for the orthotic shoes, but she, nursing supervisor Randy McPherson, and CHN Raymond 

Sindell did not follow through with a plan in order for Mr. Millner to actually receive his 

orthotic shoes.  Therefore, he did not get his shoes, and had to walk using jail issued shoes.   

17. As one would expect, Mr. Millner’s foot began to swell up as a result of being 

denied his orthotic shoes.  N.P. Carlsen saw Mr. Millner again on January 26, 2012, where she 

again noted “risk for infection without orthotic.”  She again ordered “special handling to obtain 

orthotic shoes from property,” and filled out another Special Handling Form stating “Please 

allow client to use his orthotic shoes from property – severe foot disease and risks infection 

without orthotic.”  Yet again, she and defendants McPherson and Sindell apparently dropped the 

ball on coordinating a plan, and Mr. Millner did not get his shoes.   

18.  Mr. Millner’s foot continued to get worse.  On February 2, 2012, N.P. Carlsen 

again noted the increased swelling in Mr. Millner’s foot and the increasing signs of a foot 

infections.  She also noted his multiple castings of the foot within the last year, and that he will 

likely need casting of his foot.  She referred him to an outside podiatrist instead of an 
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orthopedist.  Yet, Mr. Millner, with his rapidly declining foot, did not see the podiatrist for 

another month.   

19. Mr. Millner had numerous discussions with N.P. Carlsen inquiring as to why he 

could not get his orthotic shoes.  She explained that she had done everything she could, and was 

unable to get the shoes.  She did not elaborate as to why she could not get the shoes.    

20.  On February 14, 2012, Mr. Millner was very frustrated with his treatment and 

lack of his orthotics.  At this point he had spoken to numerous officers and was simply told “we 

don’t do transport,” meaning that they were not going to get his shoes.  He also spoke with the 

dorm counselor who recommended that he send a kyte (written note) to Nursing Supervisor 

Randy McPherson.    

21. Mr. Millner sent three kytes to defendant McPherson due to his non-response.  He 

never received a written response, but he got a phone call from defendant McPherson on 

February 23, 2012.  Defendant McPherson told Mr. Millner that he was aware of his foot 

problems, and that they were working on a plan to get him to a foot doctor.     

22.   On February 28, 2012, N.P. Carlsen again noted the increased swelling in Mr. 

Millner’s foot, and again stated he needs his orthotics or possible recasting of his foot.  It appears 

that Multnomah County was still trying to arrange a visit with a podiatrist, but there was some 

difficulty due to the County’s failure to pay a bill with a particular podiatrist.   

23.   Even though N.P. Carlsen recognized the severity of Mr. Millner’s condition,  

she failed to arrange a visit with Dr. Woll, Mr. Millner’s orthopedist, who has an office in 

Portland.   
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24.   On March 2, 2012, Mr. Millner met with defendant McPherson and told him that 

it had been over 70 days and he still does not have his orthotics, and that his right foot was very 

swollen and sore.  Deputy King finally brought his diabetic shoes to him at about 10:30 p.m. the 

next evening.  By this time, Mr. Millner’s foot was too swollen to get the shoe on, plus the staff 

had removed the shoestrings, so he couldn’t even try to keep them on his feet as he tried to walk. 

At this time, the officer informed Mr. Millner that he could not have shoe strings while in 

custody.     

25. Mr. Millner finally got to see the podiatrist on March 6, 2012.  As expected, the 

podiatrist stated the obvious, that Mr. Millner needs to wear his special orthotic shoes.  The 

podiatrist stated that the shoes could be retrofitted with Velcro straps (for about $80) since 

shoestrings are not allowed in the jail.  He gave Mr. Millner a post-op shoe to wear while the 

retrofitting was taking place. 

26.  Mr. Millner was seen by Nurse Flannagan the next day who came up with the not 

so brilliant idea of using duct tape to secure his shoes.  Her notes indicate that CCNP 

(presumably Carlsen) agreed with the plan.  The plan did not work.  It is not clear why duct tape 

is allowed in the jail, yet not shoestrings.   

27. Fortunately, the podiatrist called later the same day with the information for 

Crazy Shoes, the company that replaced the laces with Velcro straps.  Crazy Shoes also called 

the jail and said they would need to see the shoes.  Yet, remarkably, no one took the shoes to 

Crazy Shoes until March 16, 2012.  Mr. Millner got his shoes back on March 21, 2012, yet his 

right foot was so swollen he could not wear the shoes.  So, he continued to use the post-op shoe 

provided by the podiatrist.    
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28.   Mr. Millner also met with defendants Ray Sindell and Randy McPherson on 

March 21, 2012 to discuss his concerns.  He also filed a grievance.  Still, no one would do 

anything about his foot.   

29.   Although Mr. Millner was supposed to follow up with the podiatrist  in two 

weeks, the jail staff failed to follow these instructions.  At this point in time, he is wearing his 

orthotic left shoe (with the Velcro straps), but is unable to wear the right shoe due to swelling, 

and is still in the post-op shoe provided by the podiatrist.   

30. As expected, by March 30, 2012, Mr. Millner had developed a diabetic ulcer on 

the right bottom of his foot that was bleeding, oozing and extremely painful to walk on.  N.P. 

Carlsen had Mr. Millner see Dr. Ersson because it had been so long since he saw the podiatrist.  

He saw Dr. Ersson, who noted a 2 mm x 4 mm ulcer on his foot, but does nothing for him.    Dr. 

Ersson dismissed plaintiff’s concerns regarding the breakdown of the chracot foot and ulcer.  He 

further stated he did not need to see Mr. Millner again, and instead of referring him to a qualified 

orthopedist, he told Mr. Millner to follow up with N.P. Carlsen.     

31.     Mr. Millner started antibiotics on April 4, 2012 due to the foul odor coming out 

of his foot.  He saw the podiatrist again on April 9, 2012 who noted that his ulcer is now much 

larger at 1.6 cm by 0.7 cm, and 3-4 mm deep.  The podiatrist ordered that Mr. Millner use a 

wheelchair for the next three weeks.     

32. Mr. Millner was required to attend court on April 16, 2012, yet the deputies failed 

to bring the wheelchair van.  He was afraid of the repercussions if he missed court, so he walked 

into the bus and to court.   
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33. Mr. Millner saw the podiatrist again on April 30, 2012 who ordered that he stay in 

the wheelchair for two more weeks.   

34. Mr. Millner’s Multnomah County case was resolved, but he apparently had a 

warrant for his arrest in San Jose, CA for unpaid fines (which was a court error).  So, Multnomah 

County arranged for transport to San Jose.  They sent him to Douglas County Jail on May 3, 

2012.  As expected, Multnomah County personnel continued their deliberate indifference to Mr. 

Millner’s condition and failed to provide a wheelchair for the transport, requiring Mr. Millner to 

walk on his infected, oozing, painful foot.  In addition, they failed to inform the transporting and 

Douglas County officials of his current infected, oozing charcot foot, nor did Multnomah County 

inform them of Mr. Millner’s requirement of a wheelchair.  The transport form stated “See 

Problem List” which had not been updated since January 3, 2012.   

35. When he got to Douglas County, the California authorities refused to come pick 

him up.  They were apparently shocked that a Type I diabetic was being transported by bus, as 

opposed to flying him.  Since San Jose refused to accept Mr. Millner, Douglas County did not 

transport him.  It took the Douglas County officials six days to figure this out, and they finally 

released Mr. Millner on May 9, 2012.  The Douglas County Sheriff Deputy was kind enough to 

transport Mr. Millner to the bus station, and arranged for someone to pick him up once he 

reached Portland, but he had to buy his own bus ticket.  Fortunately, he was able to do so.   

36. Once back in Portland, he went to see Dr. Woll who placed Mr. Millner’s foot in 

a cast for decompression.  Unfortunately, Mr. Millner developed severe sepsis and osteomyelitis 

(bone infection) of his right foot.  It was recommended that he have his foot amputated, but Mr. 

Millner opted for trying to save his foot.   
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37.   As a result of his infections, Mr. Millner ended up having multiple surgeries 

during a two week stay in the hospital in September 2012.  He was then required to stay in a 

skilled nursing facility for another two weeks in order to receive intravenous antibiotics.  After 

his release, he made numerous visits to the hyperbaric chamber at Providence Portland.   He 

completed the hyperbaric chamber therapy on December 7, 2012 with excellent results.    

38. He spent the next six months in a crow walker, and is now finally back to wearing 

his orthotic shoes.  According to Dr. Woll, the infection was a “direct result of the injury to his 

plantar foot.”   

39.  As a direct result of the defendants’ conduct, including their failure to 

accommodate Mr. Millner and provide him with his orthotic shoes, he incurred $203,186 in 

medical bills. 

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

(Americans with Disabilities Act and § 504 of the Rehabilitation Act against 

Defendant Multnomah County) 

40. Plaintiff realleges paragraphs 1-39.   

   41.  Upon information and belief, Multnomah County has been the recipient of federal 

funds, and is thus covered by § 504's mandate, which requires recipients of federal monies to 

reasonably accommodate persons with disabilities in their facilities, program activities, and 

services, and reasonably modify such facilities, services, and programs to accomplish this 

purpose.      

42.  Multnomah County is a public entity within the meaning of Title II of the ADA, and 

provides programs, services or activities to the general public.   Title II of the ADA has 
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essentially the same mandate as Section 504.   

43.  At all times relevant to this action, Mr. Millner was a qualified individual within the 

meaning of Title II of the ADA and met the essential eligibility requirements for the receipt of 

the services, programs, or activities of the Multnomah County jails.   Specifically, Mr. Millner 

suffered from diabetes and a charcot foot that “substantially limits one or more major life 

activities,” including but not limited to the general life activities such as “walking, standing  . . . 

and working . . ..”   42 U.S.C. §12102.    

44.  Multnomah County provides housing, medical and mental health treatment, and 

work and educational programs to prisoners, which comprise programs and services for Section 

504 and Title II purposes.   

45.  Under the ADA and Rehabilitation Act, Multnomah County is required to 

accommodate disabled prisoners, including providing prisoners with necessary orthotics, 

providing the same level of medical care to disabled prisoners, and allowing prisoners to 

participate in the same programs and services as those prisoners who are not disabled.      

46.  Multnomah County was deliberately indifferent in failing to provide Mr. Millner 

with reasonable accommodations and other services related to his disabilities, and denied him the 

rights and benefits accorded to other inmates, solely by reason of his disabilities in violation of 

the ADA and Rehabilitation Act in the following particulars: 

a.   Multnomah County failed to provide Mr. Millner with his orthotics that he brought 

with him to the jail resulting in an inability to walk, being confined to a wheelchair, a bone 

infection, hospitalization, and over $203,000 in medical bills as alleged above.  

b.  Multnomah County failed to provide Mr. Millner with wheelchair accessible 

Case 3:13-cv-01689-MO    Document 1    Filed 09/23/13    Page 11 of 16    Page ID#: 11



 
Page 12 COMPLAINT  LYNN S. WALSH, OSB#92495

Suite 400 
209 SW Oak Street 

Portland, Oregon 97204 
(503) 790-2772 

walsh@europa.com

transportation to court, and to Douglas County, thus aggravating his Charcot foot. 

c.  The ADA and Rehabilitation Act require that physically disabled prisoners have 

access to adequate medical care.  Mr. Millner was denied adequate medical care.   Specifically, 

the Multnomah County jail staff failed to treat Mr. Millner’s charcot foot and resulting infection 

resulting in a bone infection, hospitalization, and over $203,000 in medical bills as alleged 

above.   

d. The ADA and Rehabilitation Act require that physically disabled prisoners have access 

to Multnomah County jail programs, services, activities, work and educational opportunities.  

Mr. Millner received no such accommodation.  Because he spent the bulk of his incarceration 

unable to walk or confined to a wheelchair, he was denied many programs, services, and 

activities available to the prisoners, e.g., exercise, yard time, job programs, etc.    

47.   The Multnomah County jail staff failed to enforce appropriate policies and 

procedures to ensure the provision of necessary accommodations, modifications, and/or 

programs and services to inmates with disabilities. 

48.  The Multnomah County jail failed to train and supervise the jail personnel to provide 

necessary accommodations, modifications, services and or physical access to inmates with 

disabilities.     

49.  As a direct and proximate result of Multnomah County’s foregoing wrongful acts, 

defendant Multnomah County discriminated against Mr. Millner on the basis of his disability in 

violation of the Americans with Disabilities Act and Rehabilitation Act, causing him to suffer a 

painful and oozing ulcer, a bone infection, severe pain and suffering for many months, severe 

emotional distress, and lack of access to the programs and services of the jail during his 
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incarceration at the Multnomah County jails.    

50.  Accordingly, plaintiff is entitled to economic damages in the amount of $203,186, 

and non-economic damages in an amount to be determined at trial against defendant Multnomah 

County for the violations of 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq., § 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, and for 

plaintiff’s attorney fees and costs pursuant to 29 USC § 794a(b) and 42 U.S.C. §§ 12205 and 

1988.   

 SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION 

(Civil Rights 42 U.S.C. § 1983 Against Defendants Carlsen, Ersson, Sindell, and 

McPherson) 

51.   Plaintiff re-alleges paragraph 1-39. 

52. Plaintiff’s condition of diabetes with a charcot foot is a serious medical condition.  

53.   Defendants Ersson, Carlsen, Sindell and McPherson were deliberately 

indifferent to plaintiff’s serious medical need in the following ways: 

a. In denying plaintiff the use of his orthotic shoes;  

b.  In failing to implement a plan for coordinating the delivery of the shoes to 

Mr. Millner as required by the policy “Prosthetics & Other Aids to 

Impairment;” 

c. In failing to provide medically acceptable treatment to Mr. Millner once 

his foot began to deteriorate;  and 

d. In failing to transport Mr. Millner to a qualified orthopedist once his foot 

began to deteriorate.   
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  54.  Defendants Ersson, Carlsen, McPherson and Sindel’s conduct toward Mr. Millner 

subjected Mr. Millner to cruel and unusual punishment under the Eighth Amendment to the 

United States Constitution and Mr. Millner’s right to due process of law under the Fourteenth 

Amendment to the United States Constitution.   

55. As a result of defendant violations of Mr. Millner’s Constitutional rights, he 

suffered a swollen, painful and ulcerated foot; a bone infection; and pain and suffering during his 

incarceration at the Multnomah County Jails.  Accordingly, Mr. Millner is entitled to economic 

damages in the amount of $203,186, and noneconomic and punitive damages in an amount to be 

determined at trial for the violation of 42 U.S.C. § 1983, and plaintiff’s attorney fees and costs 

pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988.  

 THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION 

 (Civil Rights 42 U.S.C. § 1983 Against Defendant Multnomah County) 

56.   Plaintiff realleges paragraphs 1-39.   

57.   Defendant Multnomah County was deliberately indifferent in the following 

ways: 

a. In failing to implement and enforce adequate policies and procedures 

regarding the needs of disabled inmates; and 

b. by failing to train its employees regarding the needs of disabled inmates. 

58.  Defendant Multnomah County’s conduct was deliberately indifferent to the 

serious medical needs of plaintiff, thus subjecting plaintiff to cruel and unusual punishment 

under the Eighth Amendment of the United States Constitution and plaintiff’s right to due 

process of law under the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution.   
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59. As a result of Multnomah County’s violations of Mr. Millner’s Constitutional 

rights, he suffered a swollen, painful and ulcerated foot; a bone infection; and pain and suffering 

during his incarceration at the Multnomah County Jails.  Accordingly, Mr. Millner is entitled to 

economic damages in the amount of $203,186, and noneconomic and punitive damages in an 

amount to be determined at trial for the violation of 42 U.S.C. § 1983, and plaintiff’s attorney 

fees and costs pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988.       

 FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

 (Negligence- Against Defendant Multnomah County) 

60. Plaintiff re-alleges paragraphs 1-39.   

61. Plaintiff gave a tort claim notice to Multnomah County on June 5, 2012. 

62. The agents and employees of Defendant Multnomah County were negligent in the 

following particulars:   

a. In failing to provide Mr. Millner with his orthotic shoes; 

b. In failing to treat the ulcer and subsequent infection of his foot;  

c. In failing to transport him to an orthopedist once his foot began to 

deteriorate; and 

d. In failing to provide a wheelchair for him to get to his court appointments 

and for his transport to Douglas County. 

63. Multnomah County’s agents and employees knew, or should have known that 

their acts and omissions would result in a foreseeable risk of harm to Mr. Millner; 

64. Multnomah County’s agents and employees’ conduct was unreasonable in light of 

the risk of harm to Mr. Millner.    
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65. As a direct and proximate result of the defendants’ acts or omissions, Mr. Millner 

has incurred $203,186 in medical bills, and suffered non-economic damages in an amount to be 

determined at trial.   

WHEREFORE, plaintiff prays for relief as follows: 

a.  For judgment in favor of plaintiff against defendants for economic damages in the 

amount of $203,186, and non-economic and punitive damages in an amount to be determined at 

trial; 

b.  For reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §§ 1983 and 12205, 

and 29 U.S.C. §794(b); and 

c.  For such other and further relief as may appear just and appropriate. 

 

DATED: September 23, 2013. /s/ Lynn S. Walsh              
Lynn S. Walsh, OSB #92495 
(503)790-2772 
(503)227-6840(fax) 
walsh@europa.com  
Attorney for plaintiff

Case 3:13-cv-01689-MO    Document 1    Filed 09/23/13    Page 16 of 16    Page ID#: 16



CIVIL COVER SHEET

(SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM.)

I. (a) PLAINTIFFS

(b)
(EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES) (IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)

(c) (Firm Name, Address, and Telephone Number) (If Known)

II. BASIS OF JURISDICTION (Place an “X” in One Box Only) III. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES (Place an “X” in One Box for Plaintiff
(For Diversity Cases Only) and One Box for Defendant) 

PTF    DEF PTF    DEF
(U.S. Government Not a Party) or

and
(Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item III)

IV. NATURE OF SUIT (Place an “X” in One Box Only)
CONTRACT TORTS FORFEITURE/PENALTY BANKRUPTCY OTHER STATUTES

 PERSONAL INJURY PERSONAL INJURY

PROPERTY RIGHTS

LABOR SOCIAL SECURITY
 PERSONAL PROPERTY

 REAL PROPERTY    CIVIL RIGHTS   PRISONER PETITIONS FEDERAL TAX SUITS
Habeas Corpus:

IMMIGRATION
Other:

V.  ORIGIN (Place an “X” in One Box Only)

(specify)

VI. CAUSE OF ACTION
(Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity)

VII. REQUESTED IN
COMPLAINT:

CLASS ACTION DEMAND $
JURY DEMAND:

VIII. RELATED CASE(S)
IF ANY (See instructions):

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

FRANKLIN D. MILLNER

Multnomah

Lynn S. Walsh, OSB #924955
209 S.W. Oak St., #400, Portland, OR 97204
503-790-2772

DEFENDANTS
MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OLE ERSSON, M.D., CLAUDIA CARLSEN, 
N.P., RAYMOND SINDELL, RANDEL MCPHERSON

42 USC 12101 et seq.; 29 USC 794; 42 USC 1983

Physically disabled man denied accommodation and medical care while incarcerated in jail

09/23/2013 /s/ Lynn S. Walsh

Case 3:13-cv-01689-MO    Document 1-1    Filed 09/23/13    Page 1 of 1    Page ID#: 22


